DATE:
TIME:
PLACE:

MEMBERS
PRESENT:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

NOTE:

CONVENED:

MINUTES

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE

Monday, February 03, 2025
1:30 P.M.
Room WW54

Chairman Lakey, Vice Chairman Shippy, Senators Foreman, Lent, Lenney,
Keyser, Wintrow, and Ruchti

Senator Ricks

The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

Chairman Lakey called the Senate Judiciary and Rules Committee (Committee)
to order at 1:30 p.m.

GUBERNATORIAL Committee Consideration of the Appointment of David Birch of Meridian,

APPOINTMENT:

DISCUSSION:

RS 32109

DISCUSSION:

Idaho, to the Sexual Offender Management Board (SOMB) to serve a term
commencing December 6, 2024 and expiring January 1, 2027. Mr. Birch stated
he was currently with the Idaho Department of Corrections (IDOC). He had worked
in the Idaho Criminal Justice System for over 28 years with both adolescent and
adult populations. His experience had included supervising individuals with
sexual offenses. Mr. Birch further explained he had the opportunity to work and
partner with treatment providers, evaluators and calligraphers. He felt all of his
experience would be beneficial as he served in his new position on the SOMB.

Senator Wintrow asked Mr. Birch to comment on the roles and responsibilities
he had been asked to fill and highlight the skills he had to make him a good fit
for the appointment. Mr. Birch explained the role of the Committee was to be a
regulatory board for evaluators, treatment providers and polygraph examiners.
He felt it was vital to have the highest quality people in those types of positions
because of the nature of the people being treated.

Senator Keyser questioned if Mr. Birch was familiar with the Rider Program. Mr.
Birch responded he was familiar with the Rider Program, and that it provided a
good opportunity for an individual who may be a high enough risk that they needed
to be sent to one of the correctional institutions. The person would get some level
of treatment and then demonstrate if they were a productive member of society.
The Rider Program provided benefits for judges to use for some individuals.

To Ensure that Birth Parents in the Adoption Process are Notified and
Given Free Legal and Mental Health Counseling, provided by the Adoptive
Parents. Senator Nichols stated the bill added a minimum of three sessions

of pre-placement counseling and a minimum of six post-placement counseling
sessions. The birth mother also received legal counsel and counseling services of
her choice with the costs covered by the prospective parents. Senator Nichols
added the new sections strengthen the rights and well-being of the birth mothers
by ensuring they were supported through professional counseling services and
legal guidance at no cost to them.

Senator Ruchti questioned if there was language in the legislation that stated the
fees needed to be reasonable for either the counseling or legal services. Senator
Nichols and Chairman Lakey assured Senator Ruchti there were provisions

to cover that concern.



MOTION:

S 1028

DISCUSSION:

MOTION:

S 1029

Senator Lent moved to send RS 32109 to print. Senator Keyser seconded the
motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

JUDICIAL DISTRICTS - Amends existing law to review provisions regarding the
number of judges in the First Judicial District. Jason Spillman, Legal Counsel,
Administrative Office of the Idaho Supreme Court. Mr. Spillman explained S
1028 would create a new district judge position in Kootenai County. The State of
Idaho was divided into seven judicial districts for the purpose of administration,
and the number of district judges was established by the Legislature. There
were currently 49 district judges in Idaho. The First Judicial District was in the
northern part of Idaho and consisted of five counties and seven district judges.
The last district judge position added in the first district was in 2020 and he was
chambered in Bonner County. The last district judge hired in Kootenai County was
in 2006. Kootenai County was the third fastest growing county in the State, and in
addition it had the highest number of filings per district. Mr. Spillman explained
many of the steps taken to meet the growing need for another judge. Inspite of the
efforts, the result had been decreased amount of time available for researching,
writing and issuing decisions for the judges home districts. Mr. Spillman added
housing and support for a district judge required expenditures from the involved
counties. The attached letters (see Attachments 1 and 2) from Commissioners
located in Kootenai and Bonneville County reflected their support. The lack of
space for another judge was an issue in Kootenai County. This year a new facility
was being built which would house the additional district judge.

Chairman Lakey asked Mr. Spillman how the courts handled rotating which
county could have a new judge. Mr. Spillman stated the year long budgeting
process identified what the courts requested from the Legislature related to
budgetary support. The trial court administrators presented their priorities to the
court and the administrative office provided their list of needs. All of the requests
were prioritized and the court made the decision about which requests would be
filled. This year their requests were focused on judicial compensation and the
creation of two district judge positions. The judgeships were set in statute. The
court then determined where the judges would be housed, recognizing there
was a need statewide.

Senator Ruchti moved to send S 1028 to the floor with a do pass
recommendation. Senator Lent seconded the motion. The motion passed by
voice vote. Senator Lenney requested to be recorded as voting Nay.

JUDICIAL DISTRICTS -Amends existing law to revise provisions regarding

the number of judges in the Seventh Judicial District. Jason Spillman, Legal
Counsel, Administrative Office of the Idaho Supreme Court. Mr. Spillman
stated S 1029 requested an additional judge for the Seventh Judicial District. The
Seventh District was in the eastern part of the State. It included ten counties
with six district judges covering all the areas. The last new judge position in the
Seventh District was in 2013 and he was chambered in Jefferson County. The last
time Bonneville County had a new judge added was in 1993. The judges were
currently providing coverage to the three districts that were outside of Bonneville
County to keep the cases moving. All six district judges in the Seventh District
handled a treatment court and four of them traveled outside of their own county.
The Seventh District covered an expansive geographic area and required much
travel time. It was estimated that the current district judges spent more than 51
days a year to get from courthouse to courthouse. Bonneville County was the
medical hub of eastern Idaho which resulted in complex, highly litigated, medical
malpractice cases. Letters of support from the Bonneville County Commissioners
were provided (see Attachment 2). They recognized the need for their support

in addition to that of the Legislature.

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, February 03, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



DISCUSSION:

MOTION:

DISCUSSION:

MOTION:

ADJOURNED:

Senator Shippy asked if the judges were compensated differently for their drive
time versus either time on the bench or writing their opinions. Mr. Spillman stated
they were not. He commented their travel time was accounted for, otherwise

it was the same as their salary time.

Chairman Lakey questioned how many district judges were chambered in the
other districts. Mr. Spillman responded there were 49 judges total including the
two new requested positions. He did not have the breakdown for each district,
but indicated District Three and District Four had the largest numbers because
they were large population centers. He added the smallest was the Second
District. Senator Ruchti asked if there was a possibility of a reorganization to
the districts to balance the number of judges. Mr. Spillman replied that he was
not aware of any. He indicated the Court tried to balance the requests with the
specific needs at that time.

Senator Lent moved to send S 1029 to the floor with a do pass recommendation.
Senator Wintrow seconded the motion.

Senator Lenney explained he would be voting Nay on S 1029. He added he was
concerned with the way compensation continued to grow to keep up with the
growing population. He stated there needed to be another way to determine
number of judges and districts. Senator Foreman commented that Idaho

was one of the fastest growing states in the country. He served on the Joint
Finance and Appropriations Committee (JFAC) and shared that the Legislature's
philosophy was that most of government was personnel to provide the many
services that were at the heart of things needed in our State.

The motion carried by voice vote. Senator Lenney asked to be recorded as
voting Nay.

There being no further business to come before the Committee, Chairman Lakey
adjourned the meeting at 2:00 p.m.

Senator Lakey
Chair

Sharon Pennington
Secretary

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Monday, February 03, 2025—Minutes—Page 3



